M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 15, 2004
9: 06 AM

TAPES

SFC-04 # 82, Side A
SFC 04 # 82, Side B
SFC 04 # 83, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WIken convened the neeting at approximately 9:06
AM

PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

Also Attending: MARC ANTRI M Comm ssi oner, Depart ment of
Corrections; DENNIS M CHEL, Staff to Senator Gene Therri aul t

Attending via Teleconference: From Ofnet Sites: ALEX FRASER
Credit Analyst, Standard & Poor's; GABRIEL PETEK, Credit
Anal yst, Standard & Poor's; AL STOREY, Alaska State Troopers,
Depart nent of Public Safety; SARA  FI SHER- GOAD, Fi nanci al
Anal yst, Al aska Energy Authority and Al aska | ndustri al
Devel opnent & Export Authority, Department of Conmunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent; JIM MCM LLAN, Deputy Director, Credit,
Al aska Industrial Devel opnent & Export Authority, Departnent of
Communi ty and Econom c Devel opnent; M KE HARPER, Deputy Director
- Rur al Ener gy, Al aska Industrial Devel opnent & Export
Aut hority, Departnment of Comrunity and Econom c Devel opnent;
From Anchorage: TOM WLSON, Director, Public Transportation,
Muni ci pality of Anchorage

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SFC- 04 (1) 04/15/04



SB 65- CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI TY EXPANSI ON

In conjunction wth this bill, the commttee heard a
presentation regarding the State's Credit Qutl ook from Standard
& Poor's, a credit rating agency. The Departnent of Corrections
presented testinony pertaining to the bill, and the bill was
held in Commttee.

SB 255-1 LLEGAL USE TRAFFI C PREEMPTI ON DEVI CE

The Commttee heard fromthe bill's sponsor, adopted a committee
substitute, and considered tw anmendnents wth one being
adopted. The bill was reported from Conm ttee.

SB 337- ENERGY PROGRAMS & FUNDS

The Commttee heard from the Departnment of Community and
Econom ¢ Devel oprment and reported the bill from Conmttee.

#SB65

SENATE BI LL NO. 65

"An Act authorizing the Department of Corrections to enter
into agreenments with nunicipalities for new or expanded
public correctional facilities in the Fairbanks North Star
Bor ough, the WMatanuska-Susitna Borough, Bethel, and the
Muni ci pality of Anchorage.™

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Fi nance
Commi ttee.

State of Alaska Credit Qutl ook Presentation
Credit Analyst, Standard and Poor's

Co-Chair Geen shared with the Conmttee that she had recently
heard a Standard & Poor's (S&) report regarding the State's
financial condition and funding nmechani sm options that might be
available to fund in-State correctional facilities. She noted
that nunerous nunicipalities and boroughs have offered to
participate in a "bonding process"” to further the correctional
facility objective; however, she explained, she has received
conflicting reports about how this endeavor mght inpact "the
State's bonded-indebtedness” or credit rating. Therefore, she

SFC- 04 (2) 04/15/04



continued, to clarify the information, she requested S& to
present to the Commttee in this regard. She noted that, as
standard, S& would also provide the nenbers wth general
financial information.

ALEX FRASER, State and Local Governnent Analysts Manager,
Sout hwest and Western Regions of the United States, Standard &
Poor's, testified via teleconference from an offnet site in
Dal | as, Texas, and stated that this is an opportunity for the
Menbers to ask questions relating to the State's credit ratings
as well as an opportunity for S& to followup on their
presentation to the Conference of Al askans. He stated that the
focus of that presentation was "to stress the need for the State
to develop, and continue to develop, a long-term strategy to
bal ance revenues and expenses." That, he attested, "is a very
key credit consideration for any governnent, particularly a
state like Al aska, where there is such a need to | ook at sone of
those long-term events in the revenue streans."” Continuing, he
shared that |easing and public finance are nechanisns that "have
gai ned acceptance" during the past twenty-five years and have
"become a critical nmechanisnt for those states that "have
limted ability to issue general obligation (GO debt." He
disclosed that wvarious authorities have been <created wth
financing being "dependent on regular, annual appropriations
from the state or other governnent to neet the debt service
paynents. "

M. Fraser stated that, "it 1is critical” that any |[ease-
financi ng arrangenent be supported by both the legislative and
executive branches, as, he stressed, "this adds a |arge degree
of support to the ultinate credit decision, if we know that the
project being contenplated® has garnered |ong-term support. He
attested that, while it is expected that the terns of the bonds
woul d be supported for the Ilife of the bonds, it has been
experienced that a future body questioned a decision of earlier
bodi es. He stressed that "any disruption in the |ease paynent is
taken into account, often taken quite harshly on the general
obligation credit."” Therefore, he continued, the devel opnent of
a flaw could negatively inpact a state's GO rating. He avowed
that rather than endorsing any particular project, S& usually
beconmes involved "at the point" where the financing is about to
be undert aken.

Senator Dyson asked whether a state's inplenentation of a
Constitutional spending limt mght affect its credit rating.

SFC- 04 (3) 04/15/04



M. Fraser "supposed"” that, "having nmechanisns to enforce fisca
discipline would be good;" however, he stated that a bal ance
nmust be obtained that would allow "flexibility." He stated that
wi thout the conplete details of the program it is difficult to
provi de an answer.

GABRI EL PETEK, Primary Analyst for Al aska, Standard & Poor's,
testified via teleconference from an offnet site in San
Franci sco, California, and responded that, were a spending limt
in place, S& would "focus on the progress that the State could
make toward achieving structural balance, whether that were
achieved" as the result of "a change in the State's revenue base
or through spending controls.” He acknowl edged the efforts the
State has inplenented in regards to spending controls over the
past several years. He attested that S&P does "not take a real
poi nted position on how it's achieved, it's nore our interest
that" structural balance is achieved.”" He stated that, "the only
caveat about a spending limt is to the extent that the enphasis
or the priority becane neeting the policy or neeting the targets
of the spending limt plan as opposed to focusing on the bottom
line of structural balance or the fundanentals."” Sonetines, he
shared, states get into trouble when +they, in order to
denonstrate an acconplishnent in an accounting base, nove sone
paynents from one nonth into the next nmonth in order to perhaps
"nmove it into the next fiscal year in order to adhere to sone
spending plan that has been put in place.”" He declared that a
policy like that does not lend to inproving the fundanental
credit quality of a state. Therefore, he summarized that S&F' s
focus is on the structural quality of the budget in regards to
ongoi ng revenue and expenditures.

Senat or Hof f man asked whether the State's ability to manage the
Per manent Fund and the Earnings Reserve Account (ERA) favorably
affects the State's credit rating.

M. Petek replied "absolutely." He shared that 92-percent of al
states' credit ratings range from a AA- rating to AAA rating,

and that of all the states, 34 percent, including Al aska, have
an AA rating. He continued that, while Alaska has "a strong and
high credit rating,” it's within the normal range for states. He

opined that were states recognized as a sector, they would be
one of the highest credit quality sectors that S& follows. At
the sane tinme, he warned, there are issues that Alaska nust
address "in the not too distance future" in regards to its

SFC- 04 (4) 04/15/04



credit; specifically its structural budget gap, which he pointed
out "is nmuch larger than any other state.” He stressed that, "if
it were not for the State's Pernmanent Fund and ot her underlying
resources and, nore recently, the Constitutional Budget Reserve
(CBR) ...it would be unlikely that the State's rating would be at
the current level.” Wile noting that the State's prudent
managenment of its resources is reflected favorably in its AA
credit rating, he comunicated that S&P' s two-year tine horizon
on its bond rating for Al aska would either be stable, positive
or negative depending on the current trend. He specified that
the State currently has a AA rating with a stable outlook;
however, he cautioned that "at the time when the CRB is
projected to be depleted within that two-year horizon, that
stable outlook”™ could potentially be downgraded to a negative
out | ook were changes not nade to the budget.

Senator Hoffman asked why "the substantial funds" in the
Per manent Fund Earnings Reserve Account (ERA) would not be a
factor, as he continued, that account could be accessed with a
sinple majority vote were the State to have a budget deficit.
Conti nuing, he asked whether funds |ike the ERA could be
factored into the rating scenario.

M. Petek responded that while such funds are considered, they
would be "treated as a one-tinme non-recurring resource that
could provide a buffer;" however, he commented that S&P does not
recogni ze that "as wequating to structural budget balance.”
Furthernore, he continued, were "the State to rely on the
earnings from the Pernmanent Fund as an on-going revenue source"
in such a manner as proposed by the Percent of Market Value

(POW) plan's concept of treating it "like an endowrent fund,"
S& would recognize it as a reasonable idea and "would be
confortable in analyzing that in the context.” He noted that

endownent funds are factored into the ratings of wuniversities
and other institutions and that analysts are confortable wth
including them in the process as procedures have been
established for their inclusion. He stated, therefore, that the
State's incorporation of the POW would be "one way to approach
this;" however, he qualified that while the POW could be a
"reasonabl e approach” to the issue, S& does not desire to
comment on policy proposals as it desires to remain objection.
He continued that, "absent a defined plan, and just having the
Permanent Fund available... is less desirable,” as S& would
desire some "specific approach to utilizing the earnings."”

SFC- 04 (5) 04/15/04



M. Fraser comented that POW would be viewed as a stream of
paynents rather than as one |unp sum

Senator Hoffman clarified that his comments did not pertain to
changi ng the manner through which the Permanent Fund m ght be
i nvested under POW. Rather, he attested, his coments were that
"the Permanent Fund earnings are not a one-tinme account" as both
the Permanent Fund and the earnings are permanent. Furthernore,
he attested, the earnings go into the Permanent Fund Earnings
Reserve Account and "the Legislature has not decided to spent
t hose earnings on governnent but has spend them on dividends and
inflation proofing.” He characterized the account as a re-
occurring account, whose revenues should be viewed accordingly,
and, he stressed that the State's "rating should remain on the
positive note rather than being viewed in a negative |ight
because the CBR is on the decline.”

M. Fraser responded that were the Permanent Fund to produce a
predictable flow of funds, or "regular paynents based on sone
formula" it would be viewed simlar to endowrents and other
credits. He stated that this would provide a "relatively strong
revenue stream it would be very predictable from year-to-year
and woul d be a strength.”

M. Petek informed the Conmittee that in recent internal S&P
commttee reviews, there has been an interest "in having a
detail ed explanation about where this State stands with this
structural gap and if, there is novenent on that front."

Senator B. Stevens asked whether the presenters have taken into
consideration that "it appears" there would not be a structura
budget gap in FY 04.

M. Petek responded yes, that they had recently received an
updated revenue trends report. He referenced his earlier
comments regarding the two-year time horizon ratings outlook
forecast, and commented that "that probably won't happen unti
the CBR is projected to be depleted within that timefrane, so to
the extent oil prices and revenues renmain strong as they are, |
guess it buys a little extra tinme. But the fact of the matter
is, its probably tenporary.”" He stated that it would not "be
conservative fiscal planning to assunme the revenues would remain
at the current levels."

SFC- 04 (6) 04/15/04



Senator B. Stevens noted that he would "tend to agree with that
statenent.” Continuing, he asked the presenters their views on
recent State discussions regarding nodifying "the existing tax
structure that surrounds the oil industry"; specifically, he
asked how the State's bond rating mght be affected were the
State "to restructure the oil industry and generate nore noney"
from oil even though, he acknowl edged, that the State would
remai n dependent on this one revenue source.

M. Petek responded that the details of the proposal would be a
factor. He continued that the revenues currently being received
from that industry, the State's reliance on that industry, and
future expansions in that industry and other industries such as
tourism and service sectors are currently factored into the S&P
credit reports. He opined that restructuring of the oi
industry's tax structure mght align with the current report;
however, he comented that S&P could be nore specific once the
details of the proposal were avail able.

Senator B. Stevens acknow edged the response. He conmunicated
t he understanding that, from coments he had originally heard in
Fai rbanks at the Conference of Alaskans and again today, the
CBR, which is not a guaranteed annual funding stream but which
could be accessed by the Legislature, is viewed as a
contributing factor to the State's stable credit rating.
However, he voiced being confused regarding the S&P position of
not factoring into the credit report, the ERA and the unrealized
gain of the ERA "which are statutorily weligible for and
classified as funds available for appropriation.” Therefore, he
asked for further explanation regarding why the ERA  which
consists of the realized earnings account that anounts to
approximately one billion and the unrealized earnings account of
approximately $3.5 billion are not factored into the S& bond
rating anal ysis.

M. Petek supposed that the State could divert the noney that is
specified for the Permanent Fund D vidend paynents to the
general fund; however, he stated that S&P "l ooks at things as
they actually play out" as opposed to "what 1is legally
available,” as it 1is recognized "that there are practical
limtations sonmetines to utilizing all resources avail able.™

M. Fraser agreed. He noted that were those bal ances deposited
into the CBR, it mght "forestall for a few nore years the point

SFC- 04 (7) 04/15/04



at which the rating could be reconsidered due to the structura
budget i nbal ance.”

Senator B. Stevens voiced that it is difficult to understand why
the CBR, which was established in 1990, and whose balance is
currently near the average bal ance of those 14 years, "has not
evolved into a funding mnechanism instead of a structura
i mbal ance.” Although voicing understanding of the S&P position
on the ERA, he reiterated that, "it is classified as funds
avail abl e for appropriation.”

Senat or Bunde understood that the ERA funds are not classified
by S& as part of the State's revenue stream because the State
has not previously "shown the interest or the wllingness" to
access those funds.

M. Petek responded that that "would be a fair way" to state it.

Senat or Bunde asked whether inplenmenting statutory |anguage to
provide a regular revenue stream from those earnings would have
a positive inpact on the State's bond rating, even though he
adm tted, statutory language could be altered from one
Legi slature to the next.

M. Fraser underscored Senator Bunde's last comrent by stating
that S& has w tnessed a nunber of policy changes pertaining to
such things as rainy day funds in states throughout the country.
However, he voiced that any revenue stream being reviewed as
part of an overall structural budget is evaluated for such
things as "any concentration in one source, its predictability,
its volatility" and other factors.

Senat or Bunde surm sed therefore that, in order to ensure the
State's high credit rating, the State could constitutionally
institute such things as the POW program and dedicate those
earnings to State government or it could statutory use sonme of
the excess earnings of the Permanent Fund. Both of these
avenues, he declared, "would be considered a revenue stream to
government” and would assist in ensuring the State's good credit
rating.

M. Fraser stated that the details of these two options would
require review, however, he stated that were the end result to
be "structural balance, regardless of how we got there, that
woul d be the inportant thing."

SFC- 04 (8) 04/15/04



Senator B. Stevens, follow ng-up to Senator Bunde's questioning
voi ced the understanding that the State would not be able to
claim the ERA as a stable funding source unless the State
established a |aw specifying that a specific anmount of the ERA
would be used to create a sustainable funding stream for
governnment. Continuing, he questioned the reasoning behind the
credit rating position that the State would have to spend the
noney in order for it to be deened as a sustainable funding
source as opposed to not factoring that noney in, in light of
the Legislature's current ability to access the funds in the
event of a shortfall.

M. Petek responded that the difference in the two scenarios is
that one would be viewed as a savings account that would be
considered as a one-time funding source as opposed to one being
treated as an ongoing portion of the revenue base for the State.
He exanpled that were "the ongoing revenue base short of the
ongoi ng expenditures, and the reliance is on an existing reserve
fund, then it's viewed nore |like sort of plugging the gap verses
having a predictable, projected, and forecasted stream of
revenue fromthe earnings that would be built into the budget as
an on-going source." Therefore, he stated that the rating is
cal cul ated on how the reserve woul d be treated.

Co-Chair Green concurred with Senator B. Stevens's understandi ng
that the State would be required to spend out of a fund in order
for it to be classified as revenue.

[Note: Wth the exception of the following excerpt, the
remai nder of the discussion wth Standard & Poor's addressed the
State's prison situation. Those mnutes are forthcom ng.]

Senator Bunde inquired as to whether the presenters could
comment on how Governor Frank Mirkowski's recent POW proposal
m ght address the State's credit rating concern.

M. Petek stated that S& is aware of the proposal. He
reiterated, "that the POW concept is sonething that we are
accustomed to seeing wth institutions that have | arge
endownents."” Therefore, he continued, "it could actually provide
an ongoi ng source of revenue that could hel p address this budget
gap." However, he stressed that rather than voicing a position
on public policy issues, S& would "focus on the bottomline."

SFC- 04 (9) 04/15/04



Senator Bunde stated that the Governor's proposal includes
dedicating a portion of the POW funds to the Permanent Fund
di vidend, thus making them inaccessible for governnment spending.
He asked whether this would positively or negatively affect the
State's credit rating.

M. Petek responded that the POW concept would provide
predictability, as it would not "fluctuate dramatically wth
mar ket returns from one year to the next." Therefore, he
continued it would be a "credit enhancer."” He stated that he
coul d not conment on the proposal's dividend conponent.

Senat or Bunde asked whether dedicating half of the POW funds to
a dividend would negatively affect the credit rating as opposed
to the POW funds being fully utilized to fund State governnent.

M. Petek remarked that due to the fact that none of the funds
have ever been utilized to fund State governnent, it would be
positive.

Senat or Bunde concurred.

Senator Dyson understood that the State's credit rating is
affected by "the lack of economc diversity" in that it is so
dependent on oil revenue. Following up on Senator B. Stevens
earlier questioning in this regard, he asked for further
clarification as to whether the State's credit rating could be
positively inpacted were changes nade to nmake the oil industry
nore viable with a |l onger-termfuture.

M. Petek responded that it mght; however, he expressed that
the concept is "too general" and that the particulars would be
required.

M. Fraser interjected that "on the corporate side," Exxon Mobi
Corporation, which is "a very strong conpany and very dependent
on oil revenues," has a credit rating of AAA Therefore, he
stated that the particulars of the proposal would be inportant.

Senator Dyson voiced the wunderstanding that, regardless of
whet her |arger oil reserves becane available for exploration or
devel opnment and transportation route developed that would
guarantee a longer life span and inproved delivery nethods, it
woul d not enhance the State's credit rating as the State would
continue to be a "single factor econony.”

SFC- 04 (10) 04/15/04



M. Fraser responded that "were the returns to the State so
massive that it really outweighed everything else then there
really wouldn't be any constraint there on the rating."

The bill was HELD in Committee.
#sb255

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 255( STA)
"An Act relating to traffic preenption devices."

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Co-Chair WIlken stated that this legislation would "reserve the
use of traffic preenption devices for legitimate authorized
users"” such as enmergency response providers and road mai ntenance
and public transit vehicles. He specified that CS SB 255(STA),
Version 23-LS1397\Q was before the Conmttee, and he rem nded
that previous concerns regarded whether to use the word "or" or
"and" on lines six and seven of Section 16, subsection (a) on
page one of the bill that reads as foll ows.

(a) A person commts the crine of unlawful possession or
use of a traffic preenption device if the person possesses
or uses a traffic preenption device and that person is not
at the tine of the possession or use operating an energency
vehi cl e.

Co-Chair WIlken also noted that another concern was whether to
include public transit vehicles in the exenption, as specified
in Section 1, subsection (b)(2) on page one, |line 13 through
page two, |ine one that reads as foll ows.

(2) a person operating a notor vehicle involved in highway
mai nt enance or public transit that has been authorized by
the Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities or a
municipality to possess or use a traffic preenption device.

Co-Chair WIken noted that the Departnment of Health and Soci al
Servi ces supports this |egislation.

SFC- 04 (11) 04/15/04



DENNIS M CHEL, Staff to Senator Gene Therriault, the bill's
sponsor, noted that he had worked with Co-Chair Geen's staff to
address the concern regarding the |anguage "possession or use of
a traffic preenption device" as specified in Section 1(a).
Conti nuing, he noted that changing this |anguage to "possession
and use of a traffic preenption device" would present "a
| oophol e in prosecuting people caught using these devices." He
pointed out that "these devices have no other use than to
preenpt traffic.”

Co-Chair Geen acknow edged that she is confortable with the
bill"'s existing | anguage.

Senat or Dyson stated that, while he appreciates the logic of the
di scussion, he "fundanmentally disapproves” of crimnalizing the
action of possessing "a piece of hardware” as it furthers "our
culture's” tendency to penalize people who have done nothing

wong. He likened this situation to anti-gun activists who
claim "that owning a weapon, that is only designed for defense
as in shooting people, ought to be outlawed.” In sumary, he

voi ced being uneasy about "the slippery slope of crimnalizing
sonet hi ng when no negati ve behavi or has ever been denonstrated.”

Senator O son voiced simlar concerns in that a person who m ght
possess but not be able to operate such a device "would be held
outside of the standard of being innocent until proven guilty."

There being no further discussion regarding the I|anguage in
Section 1(a), Co-Chair WIlken directed the discussion to Section

1(b) (2).

M. M chel comuni cated that utilizing traffic preenptive
devices for public transit needs is not uncomon and "does have
sone nerit" as these devices are currently utilized to address
traffic problenms in such cities as Portland Oregon, Seattle
Washi ngt on, and Chicago IIllinois.

Co-Chair WIlken noted that the bill's sponsor has provided
Menbers with "An Overview of Transi t Si gnal Priority"
publication [copy on file] that reviews these and other cities

experiences with the traffic exenption devices.

TOM WLSON, Director, Public Transportation, Minicipality of

Anchorage, testified via teleconference from Anchorage, and
explained that the Miunicipality's transit system has identified

SFC- 04 (12) 04/15/04



the inplementation of traffic preenptive devices as sonething
they would like to pursue at sone point. He stated that a conmobn
conplaint of nost transit systenms is "that buses don't run
frequently enough and that there is too much tinme" between
scheduled runs. He stated that inplenentation of devel oping
technol ogy such as traffic preenptive devices could assist in
addressing these concerns. He stated that although "long-term
field studies” have been not conducted in the United States,
information does indicate that "significant advantages and
efficiencies" could result by the inplenentation of "low
priority" traffic preenptive devices as opposed to "high
priority devices, which would be reserved for police and fire."

M. WIson explained that the low priority systens utilized in
sone cities are automated and have resulted in "significant
reductions in trip times." Continuing, he noted that the
benefits derived from trip tine reductions would include such
things as an increased use of the public transit system
decreased use of single occupancy vehicles on the roadways;
decreased road maintenance; and reduced em ssions. He stated
that because of these benefits, "it would be an unfortunate
oversight to preclude” public transit systemfromthe ability to
utilize these devices. He stated that the Anchorage transit
system woul d coordinate use of these devices with a nunber of
municipality ad hoc conmttees to include the traffic engineer
the traffic departnment, and the police and fire agencies.

Senat or Dyson voi ced concern that allowing the transit systemto
utilize these devices mght result in a scenario wherein two
| anes of private citizen traffic m ght be backed up while a city
bus, going another direction, preenpts the traffic signal in its
favor. Therefore, he asked how the program could be inplenented
to address the conpeting needs of private citizens.

M. WIson responded that this "is a comonly raised concern,”
and he noted that existing studies indicate when the systemis
"adequately designed" there is "little or no inpact on the
travel tinmes of other notorists.” Continuing, he explained that
rat her than being a manual system operated by individual buses,
the device could be tailored to specific areas and would be
oper at ed by a centralized traffic managemnent center

Furthernore, he stated that once the paraneters of the system
are established and entered into a traffic nanagenent conputer,
activation rules would limt its wuse to those tines, for
i nstance, when a bus was running ten mnutes behind schedule. In

SFC- 04 (13) 04/15/04



conclusion, he stressed that studies indicate there to be little
i npact on other traffic and that notorists in the vicinity of a
bus m ght benefit by taking advantage of the situation.

Senat or Dyson voiced disappointnent that the response did not
include wutilization of the device in low traffic tinmes to
provide a bus with a green light as opposed to requiring it to
wait at an "arbitrary" red light when there was no cross
traffic. Therefore, he surmsed that routinely the devices are
limted to high traffic tinmes. In conclusion, he stated that the
response did not assure him that the device's inpact on the
notorists would be m ni mal .

M. WIson voiced the understanding that the system would all ow
for protocols to be established in the conputer system
Therefore, he continued, Senator Dyson's concerns "could be
addressed in that fashion.”" He stressed that "the predom nant
application" of the devices has been to address congestion
rather than wait tinmes. He informed the Conmittee that transit
vehicles normally spend 15-percent of their trip time waiting at
traffic signals, and therefore, he noted, studies indicate that
this device would "significantly reduce” that wait tine by up to
40- percent on average. This, he stated, would reduce a 60-m nute
round-trip to 55-mnutes and therefore, providing "a nore
conpetitive service."

Senat or Dyson disclosed that he would be nore confortable with
the inplenmentation of traffic devices were they approved through
a local citizen or local assenbly vote process. He noted that
the residents of Anchorage have not, hi storically, been
supportive of the local transit authority. He asked whether the
communities that have inplenmented the device did so upon voter
consi derati on.

M. WIson responded that everything he had seen indicated that
the device was "inplenmented through |ocal ordinances and | ocal
processes, but not necessarily subject to a vote."

M. Mchel noted that |anguage in Section 1(b)(2) on page one of
the bill specifies that inplenentation of the preenptive device
nmust be authorized by the local municipality. He opined that
this |anguage, which reads as follows, should address Senator
Dyson's concern.

SFC- 04 (14) 04/15/04



(2) a person operating a notor vehicle involved in highway
mai nt enance or public transit that has been authorized by
the Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities or a
municipality to possess or use a traffic preenption device.

Co-Chair W1 ken observed that the |anguage includes the word
"or" and could therefore allow for authorization either by the
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT) or the
muni ci pality.

M. Mchel concurred but stated that due to the fact that DOT
does not have a bus system the authorization would be by the
muni ci pality.

Senat or Bunde commented that this |anguage would "not allow for
a vote of the people.”

Senat or Bunde understood that the Anchorage transit system does
not currently own any traffic preenptive devices.

M. WIson responded that is correct. He noted that a limted
nunber of intersections in the Minicipality are equipped wth
the devices of which only the fire departnent could activate. He
was unsure as to whether the police departnment was equi pped with
t he devi ces.

Senat or Bunde asked for a cost estinmate for outfitting the bus
transit system

M. WIson responded that an initial cost study indicates that
the transit systemis portion of the total cost of purchasing
transmtters, receivers, and conputers would amunt to three
mllion dollars. He noted that the mjority of the transit
systems expenses would be eligible to receive federal
"intelligent transportation systeni funding "which frequently
requires no |l ocal match."

Senator O son asked how the Minicipality of Anchorage with a
popul ati on of |ess than 300,000 could conpare its transportation
needs to those of "much | arger cosnopolitan areas.”

M. WIson responded that rather than conparing Anchorage to

those larger cities that have these devices, the intent was to
provide exanples of the affects of the traffic preenption

SFC- 04 (15) 04/15/04



devices. He pointed out that this is an energing technol ogy of
which, currently, only |larger areas have inpl enented.

AL STOREY, Al aska State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety,
testified via teleconference froman offnet site to coment that
the Departnment is in support of restricting the use of these
devices to energency vehicles in order to address the concern
that unrestricted use could corrupt an entire traffic managenent
system and result in chaotic and dangerous situations. He noted
that while the fire and police departnent devices have priority
status with the signaling system a situation could arise
wherein an individual could trigger a device prior to a police
of ficers approach to a signal and create confusion.

Co-Chair WIken noted that, in addition to these devices being
used in Anchorage, the city of Fairbanks has utilized these
traffic devices effectively for nore than ten years.

Senator Dyson asked whether the bill's definition of an
energency vehicle is sufficient as he questioned whet her someone
such as a supervising officer in a non-official vehicle m ght
require use of the device in an energency.

M. Storey explained that there is a very restrictive criterion
regarding the use of the device. He allowed that while an
extreme "aggravated" situation such as a hostage situation m ght
support expandi ng the authorized use of the device, he would be
surprised were, as a matter of routine business, the restrictive
criteria and usage gui delines expanded.

Senat or Dyson questioned whether the definition of a emergency
vehicle should be broadened to include a person such as the
volunteer fire departnent chief, in addition to the current
definition that limts use to fire, police, or nedical energency
vehi cl es.

M. Storey replied that although volunteer firefighters and
others who nust respond to energency situations are inportant,
the decision to broaden the definition should be a Commttee
deci si on.

Senat or Bunde asked how the system would function were two

energency vehicles approaching an intersection from different
directions.

SFC- 04 (16) 04/15/04



M. Storey remarked that fire and police vehicle transmtter
devices could be programred to supercede signals from | ower
priority devices utilized in transit system buses or mai ntenance
vehicles. He voiced the hope that the priority vehicle devices
woul d al so supercede illegal devices. In response to Senator
Bunde's question, he stated that were two priority vehicles to
approach a comon intersection there mght be conflict; however,
he noted that the energency vehicle drivers could coordinate
their positions via their conmunication radios and use of
pr of essi onal courtesy.

Senat or Bunde, noting that he is unfamliar wth these devices,
asked whet her the ones available on the market emt low priority
si gnal s. Furt her nor e, he questioned the need for this
| egislation were the high priority enmergency devices to
supercede |low priority devices.

M. Storey responded that the purpose of this legislation is to
offset crimnal acts of those who possess these devices and who
m ght use them for instance, to "corrupt the traffic managenent
systenl in order to get to work on tinme. He noted that there is
also the possibility that priority energency vehicles signals
mght be interfered with, as he was unsure of the priority
configuration of "bootl egged" devices.

M. Mchel informed the Commttee that volunteer firefighters
utilize a blue light system on their vehicles. Continuing, he
noted that while these volunteers are trained and authorized to
use these lights, they are not authorized to exceed posted speed
limts. He recomended against broadening the scope of the
definition to include persons such as volunteers.

M. Mchel further explained that a tier systemis incorporated
into the traffic preenption device system that would disallow a
low priority vehicle such as a snowlow or transit bus from
interfering with an energency vehicle signal. However, he
stressed, that without this legislation, it would be unclear as
to whether bootlegged devices could interfere with energency
vehicle devices. He clarified that when two high priority
vehi cl es approach a signaled intersection, "it is a first cone,

first served basis."

Senator Dyson stated that he would accept the |anguage in

Section 1(a). However, he suggested |anguage in Section 1(b)(2)
be al tered.

SFC- 04 (17) 04/15/04



Conceptual Anmendnment #1: This anendnent deletes the word
"municipality”" in Section 1, subsection (b) (2) on page one,
line 15, and replaces it wth "municipal or city assenbly." The
anended | anguage woul d read as foll ows.

(2) a person operating a notor vehicle involved in highway
mai nt enance or public transit that has been authorized by
the Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities or a
municipal or city assenbly to possess or use a traffic
preenptive devi ce.

Senator Dyson noved for the adoption of Amendnent #1. He
infornmed that this amendnent would provide local citizenry the
ability to have a public process through which to weigh in on
whether to allow their local transit system to have these
devi ces.

Senat or Bunde objected to inform that he would be presenting an
anendnent that would renove the entire public transit |anguage
fromthe legislation. He recalled that M. WIson had testified
that the transit system "has no present plans” to inplenent
t hese devices. Continuing, he noted that he would be open to the
idea in the future, were the citizens of Anchorage provided the
opportunity to participate in the decision were the transit
systemto advance this effort.

Senat or Bunde renoved his objection.

There being no further objection, Arendnent #1 was ADOPTED.
Conceptual Anendnent #2: This anendnent del etes the | anguage "or
public transit”, and "or a nunicipal or city assenbly" as
anended by Anendnent #1, in Section 1, subsection (b)(2) on page
one, lines 14 and 15. The | anguage woul d read as foll ows.

(2) a person operating a notor vehicle involved in highway
mai nt enance that has been authorized by the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities to possess or use a
traffic preenptive device.

Senat or Bunde noved for the adoption of Amendnent #2.

Senat or W1 ken obj ect ed.

SFC- 04 (18) 04/15/04



Senator Bunde stated that this anmendnent would renove the
transit system from the legislation due to the fact that there
is currently no plan underway to institute these devices in
Anchorage's transit system and, therefore, authorization is not
currently required. Continuing, he noted that this issue could
be readdressed in the future. He declared that he does not agree
that these transit devices would not "inconvenience" other
not ori sts.

Co-Chair WIlken maintained his objection, as he stated he is
confortable with allowing the transit system to remain in the
bill; especially in light of the | anguage added by Amendnent #1.

Senator O son commented that, as a physician, it is difficult to

di scuss energency vehicles and transit buses in the sane
conversati on.

SFC 04 # 83, Side A 10:42 AM

Aroll call was taken on the notion.
I N FAVOR: Senator d son and Senat or Bunde

OPPCSED: Senat or Hof fman, Senator B. Stevens, Senator Dyson, Co-
Chair Green, and Co-Chair WI ken

The notion FAILED (2-5)

Amendnent #2 FAILED to be adopt ed.

Co-Chair Geen noved to report the bill, as anmended, from
Commttee wth individual recommendations and acconpanyi ng
fiscal notes.

Co-Chair WIlken objected in order to request that Menbers read
the analysis included with the new fiscal note provided by the
Public Defenders Ofice of the Departnment of Adm nistration.
Co-Chair WI ken renoved his objection.

There being no further objection, CS SB 255 (FIN) was REPORTED

from Committee with zero fiscal note #1, dated February 9, 2004
and zero fiscal note #2, dated February 6, 2004 from the

SFC- 04 (19) 04/15/04



Departnent of Public Safety; zero fiscal note #3, dated February
10, 2004 from the Departnent of Law, and a new indeterm nate
fiscal note, dated April 6, 2004 from the Departnent of
Adm ni stration.

#sb337

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 337(L&QC)
"An Act relating to the powers of the Alaska Energy

Authority to nmake grants and | oans, to enter into
contracts, and to inprove, equip, operate, and naintain
bulk fuel, waste energy, energy conservation, energy
ef ficiency, and alternative ener gy facilities and

equi pnent; relating to the bulk fuel revolving |oan fund;
relating to the Al aska Energy Authority's liability for the
provision of technical assistance to rural utilities;
relating to the Al aska Energy Authority's investnent of the
power devel opnment fund; repealing the electrical service
extension fund; and providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Co-Chair Wl ken, noted that this |egislation, which is sponsored
by Senate Rules by the Request of the Governor, pertains to the
powers of the Al aska Energy Authority and would anmend statutory
provi sions of the Authority's Energy Loan Program (ELP)

SARA FI SHER- GOAD, Fi nanci al Anal yst Al aska | ndustri al
Devel opnent & Export Authority (AIDEA) and Alaska Energy
Aut hority (AEA) , Depar t ment of Communi ty and Econom ¢

Devel opnent, testified via teleconference from an offnet site,
and stated that this legislation wuld allow the Power Project
Fund (PPF) to authorize loans for waste energy and energy
conservati on, ener gy ef ficiency, and alternative ener gy
facilities and equi pnment.

Co-Chair WI ken noted that Menbers' packets contain an Al DEA/ AEA
letter [copy on file] dated March 16, 2004 and addressed to the
Comm ttee co-chairs, that outlines the projects affected by this
| egi sl ati on.

Ms. Goad stated that the changes proposed to the PPF would
expand the definition of eligible energy efficiency projects in

SFC- 04 (20) 04/15/04



order to include projects such as lighting retrofits. She also
noted that the bill would repeal the Loan Committee that
approves the PPP loans and incorporate the credit approval
process that includes an appeal process to the Board of
Directors, as currently utilized by Al DEA

Ms. Goad stated that another program affected by the |egislation
woul d be the Bul k Fuel Revolving Loan Fund (BFRLF) that provides
"short-term loans to assist smal | rural comunities in
pur chasi ng annual bul k fuel supplies.” She qualified that while
the Departnent of Law recently interpreted the definition of
eligible borrowers to be conmmunities and private individuals,
the bill would allow funds to be provided to other entities such
as corporations, cooperatives, and joint vent ures. Thi s
expansion, she attested would "not expand the definition of
eligible borrower beyond the long-standing interpretation and
practice that included other entities such as corporations.”

Ms. Goad noted that while AEA has been investing the Power
Devel opnent Fund since 1993, this bill would affirmits ability
to do so by, wth the concurrence of the Departnent of Revenue,
providing AEA with the necessary statutory authority. She
pointed out that all earnings of the Fund are remtted to the
State's general fund.

Ms. Goad noted that this bill would clarify AEA s general power

of authority to issue grants and contracts in that, "as acting
as an agent for rural comunities, AEA nanages power projects,
bulk fuel projects and alternate energy projects.” She noted

that AEA receives and expends federal funds from entities such
as the Denali Conmm ssion and the US Departnment of the Energy
through the State's appropriation process.

Ms. Goad also stated that the bill "clarifies that AEA s
statutory mandate to provide technical assistance nmay not be
used as an independent basis for tort liability against AEA"
However, she noted that, "AEA would continue to be l|iable for

negligence if it fails to use reasonable care in the providing
t he techni cal assistance.”

Ms. CGoad stated that the bill would also repeal the inactive

El ectrical Service Extension Fund. She urged the Commttee to
act favorably in regard to this bill

SFC- 04 (21) 04/15/04



Co-Chair WIlken noted that the repealing |anguage regarding the
Electrical Service Extension Fund is located on page seven,
Section 12, of the bill. Furthernore, he noted that the Fund
noney, anounting to approxi mately $85,000, would be transferred
to the general fund.

Senat or Dyson asked whether "changing lighting systens" would
qualify as an energy efficiency project.

JIM MCM LLAN, Deputy Director, Credit and Busi ness Devel opnent,
Al aska Energy Authority, Departnent of Comrunity and Econom c
Devel opnment, testified via teleconference from an offnet site,
and responded that, while projects of this nature have been
denied in the past, this bill would allow for retrofitting of
lighting to save energy costs to qualify for the PPF program

Senat or Dyson understood therefore that transitioning "from
i ncandescent lighting to something with a better power factor”
woul d be al | owed.

Senator (O son asked for further information regarding the
repealing of the Bulk Fuel Revolving Fund, AS 42.45.250(1)(1),
as specified in the bill in Section 11, on page seven, line ten;
specifically as this mght affect bulk fuel storage facilities
that store in excess of 10,000 gallons of fuel.

M. MMIllan responded that the intent of this language is to
"clean up" State statutes as the definition of "bulk fuel
storage facility” is not included anywhere in State statutes. He
stressed that repealing the section would not have any affect on
the program s operation.

Senat or O son asked whether a mninmum of 10,000 gallons of fuel
must be purchased in order to quality for the Loan program

M. MMIIlan responded in the negative.

M KE HARPER, Deputy Director - Rural Energy, Al aska Industrial
Devel opnent & Export Authority, Department of Conmunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent, testified via teleconference from an
offset site to state that this legislation "is fairly straight
forward® and would provide the Authority "with the ability to
nove forward and to carry out" the Loan Programis mssion for
"building projects in rural Al aska."

SFC- 04 (22) 04/15/04



Senator Bunde shared that he had heard from a fuel storage
constituent who operates in Wstern Alaska and who had shared
that there is a strong business interconnection between Wstern
Al aska and Central Al aska. He stated that these fuel sales are
inportant and are a priority in that, due to weather and being
required to ship via barge, the fuel nust be shipped before the
onset of wnter. On another note, he nentioned that another
person, who was having difficulty in paying for fuel, wote a
letter saying that paying for his fuel would jeopardize his
cable, as it would be shut off if he did not pay that bill

Senator Dyson noted that, in the past, he had conducted waste-
heat recovery studies in approximately fifteen villages in
Western Al aska, and he concluded that efforts to inprove energy
situations by utilizing such things as power plants waste heat
to heat schools, is a "win-win situation.” Therefore, he spoke

to his conflict of interest and stated that he has "a |ot of
ent husiasm for what's being done.”
Senator Dyson noved to report the bill from Conmttee wth

i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

There being no objection, CS SB 337(L& ) was REPORTED from
Commttee with zero fiscal note #1, dated Decenber 18, 2003 from
the Departnent of Revenue, and zero fiscal note #2, dated
February 3, 2004, from the Departnent of Community and Econom c
Devel opnent .

#

ADJ QURNVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 10:55 AM

SFC- 04 (23) 04/15/04



